
GRANITE MOUNTAIN CHARTER SCHOOL 
10535 Foothill Blvd #100, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 
Phone (909) 906-3593 
Fax (909) 324-2720 

Regular Scheduled Board Meeting 
Granite Mountain Charter School 

July 9, 2020, 12 p.m. 
10535 Foothill Blvd. #100 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 

Through Teleconference 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us04web.zoom.us/j/73217446714?pwd=RUdzT0s5SWRVZk10SlluOG 
MxY2NHZz09 

Meeting ID: 732 1744 6714 
Password: granite 

AGENDA 
�� Call to Order

�� Approval of the Agenda�±�SJ�����

�� Public Comments

�� Executive Director’s Report

D� Enrollment Update

E� Procurify Update

F� Charter Technical Services (IT) Update

G� Curriculum Update

H� HR Update

�� Approval of Minutes - June 25, 2020 – pg. 3

�� Approval of Minutes - June 27, 2020 – pg. 6

�� Discussion and Potential Action on the Board Member Selection

�� Discussion and Potential Action on the Election of Officers – pg. 8

�� Discussion and Potential Action on the Compensation Policy±�SJ���

��� Presentation on the Implementation of Charter Safe Services – pg. ��

11



����Discussion and Potential Action on the School Enrollment Capacity – pg. ��

����Discussion and Potential Action on the Instructional Funds Policy�±�SJ����

����Discussion and Potential Action on the Policy Confirming No Funds or Things of Value to�� 

Students, Parents of Guardians�±�SJ����

����Discussion and Potential Action on the Ordering Guide

����Discussion and Potential Action on the Policy Regarding Inconsistent, Incompatible or�� 

Conflicting Employment, Activity or Enterprise by School Personnel�±�SJ����

����Discussion and Potential Action on the Staff Information Technology Use Policy

����Discussion and Potential Action on the Information Technology Department Policies and�� 

Procedures

����Discussion and Potential Action on the Acceptance of the Sale of Receivables Proposals - pg.�� 
�2
����Closed Session - Executive Director’s Evaluation

����Discussion and Potential action on the Executive Director’s Salary and Benefits – pg.��4��� 

����Board of Director’s Requests

����Announcement of Next Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting

����Adjournment

Public comment rules: Members of the public may address the Board on agenda or non-agenda items through  the 
teleconference platform, zoom. Zoom does not require the members of the public to have an account or login. Please either 
utilize the chat option to communicate with the administrative team your desire to address the board or simply communicate 
orally your desire to address the board when the board asks for public comments. Speakers may be called in the order that 
requests are received. We ask that comments are limited to 2 minutes each, with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so 
that as many people as possible may be heard. If a member of the public utilizes a translator to address the board, those 
individuals are allotted 4 minutes each. If the board utilizes simultaneous translation equipment in a manner that allows the 
board to hear the translated public testimony simultaneously, those individuals are allotted 2 minutes each. By law, the Board is 
allowed to take action only on items on the agenda. The Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to school staff or calendar 
the issue for future discussion. 

Note: Granite Mountain Charter School Governing Board encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 
meeting process. If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to 
participate in the public meeting, please contact the Governing Board Office at 951-290-3013 at least 48 hours before the 
scheduled board meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. (Government Code § 54954.2; 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. § 12132)). 

22



GRANITE MOUNTAIN CHARTER SCHOOL 
10535 Foothill Blvd #100, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 
Phone (909) 906-3593 
Fax (909) 324-2720 

Regular Scheduled Board Meeting Minutes - Granite Mountain Charter School 
June 25, 2020 at 12:00 pm 

Attendance via teleconference: Luke Kibler, Wendy Maldonado, Valarie Campa, Huda Haddad 
Absent: None 

Call to Order: 
Luke Kibler called the meeting to order at 12:05 pm. 

Approval of the Agenda: 
Valarie Camps motioned to approve the agenda. Huda Haddad seconded. 
-Unanimous

Public Comments: 
None 

Executive Director’s Report: 

Executive Director’s gave a report on: 

a. Material Revision Update
b. Enrollment Update
c. Procurify Update
d. Charter Technical Services Update
e. Curriculum Updates

Approval of Minutes - June 11, 2020: 

Huda Haddad motioned to approve minutes. Valarie Campa seconded. 
-Unanimous

Approval of Minutes - May 30, 2020: 

Wendy Maldonado motioned to approve minutes. Valarie Campa seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Acceptance of the Board President Resignation: 

Valarie Campa motioned to approve the Acceptance of the Board President Resignation. Wendy 
Maldonado seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Bylaws: 
Huda Haddad motioned to approve the Bylaws. Valarie Campa seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Affirming of Board Members and Their Term: 

Valarie Campa motioned to approve the Affirming of Board Members and Their Term: Valarie Campa and 

3



Luke Kibler being the first year and Huda Haddad and Wendy Maldonado the second year. Wendy 
Maldonado seconded. 
-Unanimous
Valarie Campa motioned to post a vacancy for board member position by July 6th, 2020. Huda Haddad
seconded.
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Compensation Policy: 
Valarie Campa motioned to submit the Compensation Policy back to legal. Wendy Maldonado seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the 2020-2021 School Board Meeting Calendar: 
Huda Haddad motioned to approve the 2020-2021 School Board Meeting Calendar with the addition of 
June 27th Special Meeting at 9AM. Valarie Campa seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation Criteria: 
Wendy Maldonado motioned to approve the Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation Criteria. Huda 
Haddad seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the May Financials: 
Wendy Maldonado motioned to approve the May Financials. Huda Haddad seconded. 
-Unanimous
Wendy Maldonado motioned to Move Out of order to the 2020-2021 Budget. Valarie Campa seconded.
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the 2020-2021 Budget: 
Wendy Maldonado motioned to approve the 2020-2021 Budget. Huda Haddad seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Middle School Student High School Credit Policy: 
Valarie Campa motioned to approve the Middle School Student High School Credit Policy. Wendy 
Maldonado seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Transcription of Honors Classes: 
Huda Haddad motioned to approve the Transcription of Honors Classes. Wendy Maldonado seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the COVID-19 Plans: 
Valarie Campa motioned to approve the COVID-19 Plans. Huda Haddad seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Charter Safe Renewals: 
Valarie Campa motioned to approve the Charter Safe Renewals. Huda Haddad seconded. 
-Unanimous

44



Discussion and Potential Action on the Invoices Over 100,000: 
Valarie Campa motioned to table item for next meeting. Huda Haddad seconded. 
-Unanimous

Board of Director’s Requests: 
-Information on the AB-77 bill as things unfold.
-To take a look and analyze all services provided by Charter Safe that can be utilized.
-Vacancy for new board member resumes to be submitted by July 6th.

Announcement of Next Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting: 
Next regular board meeting will be on Thursday July 9th, 2020 at 12:00 pm. 

Adjournment: 
Huda Haddad motioned to adjourn meeting at 2:46 pm. Valarie Campa seconded. 
-Unanimous

55



GRANITE MOUNTAIN CHARTER SCHOOL 
10535 Foothill Blvd #100, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 
Phone (909) 906-3593 
Fax (909) 324-2720 

Granite Mountain Charter School - Special Board Meeting 
June 27, 2020 at 9:00 AM  

Attendance via teleconference: Luke Kibler, Wendy Maldonado, Valarie Campa, Huda Haddad 
Absent: None 

Call to Order: 
Luke Kibler called the meeting to order at 9:02AM. 

Approval of the Agenda: 
Huda Haddad motioned to approve the agenda. Valarie Campa seconded. 
-Unanimous

Public Comments: 
None 

Closed Session – Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 54956.9: 
Valarie Campa motioned into closed session at 9:04AM. Huda Haddad seconded. 
-Unanimous
Valarie Campa motioned out of closed session at 10:16AM. Wendy Maldonado seconded.
-Unanimous
No action was taken in closed session.

Huda Haddad motioned to move out of order to item number 6, Discussion and Potential Action on the 
Charter School Management Contract. Wendy Maldonado seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Charter School Management contract:  
Huda Haddad motioned to approve the Charter School Management contract. Valarie Campa seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Acceptance of the PPP Loan: 
Huda Haddad motioned to approve the Acceptance of the PPP Loan with the condition that the money is 
placed in a separate account and a pre-approval from the Board on the spending of the money. Wendy 
Maldonado seconded. 
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the School Enrollment Capacity: 
Wendy Maldonado motioned to pause enrollment at the spaces offered of 3665 and will hold a special 
meeting on any potential passing of laws. Valarie Campa seconded. 
-Unanimous

66



Board of Director’s Requests: 
-Kiumars Arzani contact information to be shared with the Board.

Announcement of Next Regular Board Meeting: 
Next regular board meeting will be on July 9th,2020 at 12:00 PM. 

Adjournment: 
Valarie Campa motioned to adjourn the meeting at 12:20 PM. Huda Haddad seconded. 
-Unanimous

Noted By 

Board Secretary 

77



�
�

����������(OHFWLRQ�RI�2IILFHUV�
�

-XO\���������
�
3UHVLGHQW���BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
�
9LFH�3UHVLGHQW���BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
�
6HFUHWDU\���BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
�
7UHDVXUHU���BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
�
+LVWRULDQ���BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
�
�
&HUWLILHG�E\��
�
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
%RDUG�6HFUHWDU\�
�
�
&HUWLILHG�RQ��
�
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
'DWH�

88



2020-2021 COMPENSATION POLICY 

Dedication to Non-discrimination 

It is the policy of Granite Mountain Charter School not to discriminate on the basis of race, religious 
creed (which includes religious dress and grooming practices), color, national origin (which includes, but 
is not limited to, national origin groups and aspects of national origin, such as height, weight, accent, or 
language proficiency), ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic 
information, marital status, sex (which includes pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, and related 
medical conditions), gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, military or 
veteran status (including state and federal active and reserve members as well as those ordered to duty 
or training), immigration/citizenship status or related protected activities (which includes 
undocumented individuals and human trafficking), protected medical leaves, domestic violence victim 
status, political affiliation, or any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws, 
ordinances, or regulations. 

Important Information 

● This summary does not alter the at-will nature of the employment relationship and nothing in
this summary shall limit the School’s right to terminate employment at-will or limit the School’s
right to transfer, demote, suspend, administer discipline, and change the terms and conditions
of employment at its sole discretion.  This includes, without limitation, the School’s right to
modify the compensation of any employee at any time, with or without notice and with or
without cause.

• The School Board adopts this compensation schedule for 2020-2021 only.  Pay increases are not
granted automatically each year; therefore, neither past nor future compensation can be
calculated, assumed, or predicted on the basis of this schedule or any information contained
herein. Compensation of any employee may also be adjusted at any time based on operational
needs of the School.

● The Principal Executive Director shall approve recommend compensation for all School staff,
consistent with the budget approved by the School Board.  An employee’s regular compensation
is paid on a semi-monthly basis in accordance with the School’s payroll practices and policies.
The Executive Director has the authority to hire and fire all employees, and the board will be
provided a monthly report of new hires.

● The School reserves the right to change, suspend, revoke, terminate, or supersede provisions of
this compensation schedule at any time.  To the extent any of provisions herein differ from the
terms of an employee’s employment agreement, the terms of the agreement shall prevail.

Compensation Philosophy 

A compensation philosophy is a statement that defines what an organization offers and chooses 
to reward via its compensation system. The School’s compensation philosophy places emphasis 

99



on equity, transparency, excellence, and commitment. These five key values are the foundation 
for all School compensation structures and practices. 

We offer… 

• comprehensive compensation packages for all staff, including base salary and benefits.
Certain employees may be eligible for bonuses and stipends, as set forth herein

• a dynamic culture and vibrant community of colleagues united by shared dedication to
students, a commitment to innovation, and a strong growth mindset

• unique career pathways, growth and development opportunities, and leadership roles
that encourage staff to challenge themselves

• equitable compensation, regardless of gender, race/ethnicity, national origin, sexual
orientation, age, religion, disability or any other consideration made unlawful by
federal, state, or local laws, ordinances, or regulations

• a transparent and clearly communicated compensation system, so that staff understand
what factors may determine individual compensation and how and when potential
changes to compensation will be affected

We recognize and reward… 

• exceptional performance and contributions that enable excellent student outcomes

• commitment of staff who contribute to the long-term success of our students and our
organization

 For teachers… 

Given the role they play in providing educational services, teachers are particularly critical to the 
success of our mission. As such, we offer teacher compensation to attract and retain talented 
educators, and we specially recognize and reward:   

• exceptional teacher performance that leads to growth and excellence for students

• commitment of teachers who develop deep, high-quality educational experience (within
or outside of the School) and assume critical leadership responsibilities

1010



TEACHER COMPENSATION 

Teacher Definition: 

For purposes of this schedule, a Teacher is defined as a person who has a valid credential or certificate 
that allows them to teach a specific subject matter or special education 

Salary Placement Guidelines: 

Upon hire, each employee’s salary placement will be calculated based on the YEAR an employee fits, and 
in accordance to the professional and teaching experience gathered in previous years in the institutions 
outlined in this manual and on other factors such as prior performance (which includes a rehired 
employee). 

The starting salary of a new employee may exceed the salary of a current employee in the same position 
based on the new employee’s years of experience.  

Creditable Years of Experience: 

• The School has the option to grant one (1) YEAR for each one (1) year of approved creditable
teaching or professional experience up to 5 (five) years.

• An additional year may be granted for teachers who have school-desired experience in what
the school determines to be “hard-to-staff” positions.

• One year of creditable professional or teaching experience will be granted for full-time
employment, which is employment for 100% of an institution’s normal work schedule during
the school year

• A partial year of creditable professional or teaching experience can be granted for up to a
year of part-time employment, which is less than 100% of an institution’s normal work
schedule during the school year.

• Creditable professional or teaching experience may be earned in:
• California and US public, charter, and private elementary and secondary schools
• Accredited foreign public, charter, and private elementary and secondary schools
• California, US, and foreign accredited universities and colleges
• Non-public special education contract schools for special education teachers
• Other regionally accredited educational institutions

• Creditable teaching experience is experience as a teacher in one of the institutions outlined
above.

• A maximum of 2 years of substitute teaching experience in California and US public, charter,
and private elementary or secondary schools may be accepted.

• Two years of teacher assistant experience in the above institutions will be equal to 1 YEAR in
the salary schedule up to a maximum of 2 YEARS.

1111



• Other relevant professional experience may be considered by the Executive Director Principal
or designee.

The Principal Executive Director or his or her designee may adjust a rehired teacher’s placement on the 
pay scale as appropriate based on the employee’s accumulated experience following the teacher’s 
separation from the School, which may result in a higher or lower placement on the scale than the 
teacher would have otherwise been placed had the teacher been continuously employed.  

Credential/Certification: 

• Teachers holding a valid and active credential (i.e., preliminary, clear, lifetime) California
teaching certificate at the time of hiring/rehiring will generally be compensated in
accordance with the applicable teacher salary table (B Basis, C Basis or Special Education) for
certificated teachers.

• The School may hire teachers with a bachelor’s degree who do not hold a clear teaching
credential.  Staff holding an alternative certification (intern, emergency, or preliminary
credential) are rated on the same salary teacher table as certificated teachers.

• A teacher is eligible to advance to the proper Pay Scale level once they meet the requirement
for that specific Pay Scale Level and Group based on their creditable years of service and
post-BA units, if applicable.

• Any increase in pay resulting from an advancement on the Pay Scale based on the successful
completion of post-BA units will not take effect until after the School’s receipt of sufficient
documentation supporting the advancement.  Pay increases for post-BA units will not be paid
retroactively.  For illustration purposes, if a teacher is awarded a degree on January 15 and
provides proof of the degree on May 1, any advancement on the Pay Scale and increase in
pay will be effective beginning the first pay period following May 1.  The teacher will not be
paid at the higher rate of compensation retroactively (i.e., for the periods between January
15 and May 1).

• All teaching credentials must be reflected on the California Commission on Teacher
Credentialing’s website.

Advanced Degree/Certificate Stipends: 

• Teachers who hold a Doctoral degree are entitled to additional compensation of a 7.5%
differential (stipend) of their current annual salary on the Salary Table.

• The stipend is not included in your annual salary and may be processed separately from
regular earnings.

• National Board Certificate (NBC) holders are entitled to a 7.5% differential (stipend) of their
current annual salary on the Salary Table.

• To qualify for the advanced degree or certificate stipends, employees must submit proof of
attainment of the degree or NBC.  Stipends will not be paid until sufficient documentation is
presented and will not be paid retroactively.  For illustration purposes, if a teacher is
awarded a degree on January 15 and provides proof of the degree on May 1, any
advancement on the Pay Scale and increase in pay will be effective beginning the first pay

1212



period following May 1.  The teacher will not be paid at the higher rate of compensation 
retroactively (i.e., for the periods between January 15 and May 1). 

• The stipends will be paid as set forth in the Stipend Chart below.

Signing Bonus: 

If the School decides to issue signing bonuses, the following requirements shall apply. 

• Signing bonuses may be offered to teachers certified in an area of critical concern as defined
by the School, to promote diversity, or to address specific concerns at the school.

• The Principal Executive Director shall designate the individuals authorized to receive the
signing bonus in writing.

• The signing bonus must be approved by the board prior to any payment.
• To qualify for a signing bonus, the teacher must:

• be certified in the field they are hired to teach.
• teach in that field of the bonus.

Supplemental Duty Stipends:  

• Stipends are assigned and approved by the Principal Executive Director l or his/her designee
at the beginning of the school year or semester or as otherwise noted in the chart below.

• Teachers who perform the supplemental duties outlined in the table below are eligible to
receive the corresponding stipends as indicated and only if assigned/awarded to the teacher
by the Principal Executive Director or his/her designee.  The number of stipends awarded
under each category and/or the periods of service during the school year are at the sole
discretion of the Principal Executive Director or his/her designee in writing.

• Supplemental duty stipends are authorized for the specific year assigned and are not
renewed for the future years unless specifically authorized for those years in writing. This
means additional duties are assigned on a year by year basis and are not guaranteed
responsibilities that carry over from year to year.

• Supplemental pay will cease when there is no need for the duty, the employee becomes
ineligible or as otherwise determined in the sole discretion of the School Executive Director.

• The School Executive Director, in its his/her sole discretion, may choose not to offer certain
stipends

• Stipend amounts and requirements will be reviewed periodically and may be modified from
time to time at the sole discretion of the School Executive Director.

1313



• Supplemental duty stipends are prorated and will be paid as set forth in the below Stipend
Chart, once the Supplemental duty has started.

• Student stipends are paid per semester based on the teacher roster in the months of
September and February.

Stipend Chart 

1414



1515



Voluntary Transfer to Lower Role Placement or Teaching position 

• Employees approved to voluntarily transfer to a position in a lower placement on the salary
scale will be placed in the new salary placement or teacher salary schedule, and the salary
will be calculated as it is in the new placement or schedule.

1616



1717



****During the rate-in-process for new hires Principal Executive Director may approve 
additional units earned beyond post-baccalaureate credits equivalent to 4-semester units 
for each year starting with year 15. A candidate can earn a maximum of 60 credits for 
experience based on Principal Executive Director approval. 

1818



1919



2020



Additional Supplement Bonus (“Supplement”): 

The Principal Executive Director may recommend a Supplement for teachers as set forth in this section. 

• A Principal Executive Director, in his or her sole discretion, shall determine what duties shall
be supplemented based upon the operational needs of the school.

• A supplement is not automatic, and can be provided at the discretion and approval of the
Principal Executive Director, based on additional work beyond the regular work
responsibilities.

• A supplement will be paid to the employee in accordance with the schedule provided by the
School at the time of supplement award.

• The supplemental award shall not exceed $35,000 or 50% of annual salary, whichever is
higher.

• All supplements listed are paid for the performance of duties beyond the regular work day
and normal job responsibilities and are not approved solely on the basis of position
classification or previous supplement payment. Additional time spent fulfilling job duties
does not constitute a basis for compensation beyond the teachers' regular salary.

• Teacher supplements will be set forth in a Supplement Performance Order. The Supplement
Performance Order Request shall be completed and signed by the teacher and the Principal
Executive Director prior to performing the supplemental duties.

• Supplements will be paid in installments or one lump sum if less than $1,001. However, this
option will not be available where it would cause the employee to receive compensation
prior to providing the service.

• Additional Supplements may include things such as Winter Break Coverage and Extra Student
Pay and Enrollment Milestones.

• To qualify for an extended duty supplement, the following criteria must be met as requested
and assigned by the Principal Executive Director:

• 1. The Principal Executive Director must first agree with the teacher on the terms in
writing

• 2. The supplemental work must be separate from the normal job responsibilities.
• 3. The work must be completed or in the progress of being completed.

Part-time Teachers: 

For all part-time teachers.

• Part-time/Full time Status: Compensation for part-time teachers will be $30.00 per hour.
Estimated hours for part-time teachers each week includes a maximum of 10 hours per week
for approved non-instructional activities (recruiting, planning, grading, parent conferences,
etc.) and one (1) additional hour per week per enrolled student. This allotted time should be
sufficient to complete each part-time teacher’s duties.   All time worked will be compensated
at the part-time teacher’s hourly rate.  Part-time teachers will work no more than up to 17
hours of work per pay period in July and for up to 8.5 hours of training in August.

• Part-time teachers must accurately record and timely submit records of all time worked and
observe all lunch and rest breaks as outlined in the School’s employee handbook.  Part-time

2121



employees may not work overtime (i.e., over 8 hours in a workday or 40 hours per 
workweek) without written authorization from their direct supervisor. 

When a case load of 20 students is reached, employees may be rated in and placed on a 
salary table and given health care benefits contingent upon the teacher’s expected 
maintenance of a case load at the norm of 28 students for full-time teachers.  Carrying a case 
load of less than 28 students over a course of three (3) consecutive months may result in a 
return to part time status. 

2222



CLASSIFIED COMPENSATION 

Experience and Placement 

• Each classified employee will be placed on the salary schedule based on their creditable years
of experience, which will be categorized as equivalent or applicable experience.

• Equivalent experience is the directly related experience of an employee to the position held
or hired. Applicable experience is the other administrative, teaching, or professional
experience which is not directly related to the position held or hired.

• Example: Office Manager experience at a private school is accepted as equivalent
experience for a person in the Office Manager position, but teaching experience will
be applicable experience.

• Example:  SPED instructional aide at a school district, or a company may be
equivalent experience for the SPED instructional aide position, but SPED center aide
will be applicable experience.

• The evaluation of prior experience and placement on the Salary Scale will be recommended
by the Human Resources Department and the Principal Executive Director or designee makes
the final decision, consistent with the School’s approved budget.

• The following criteria will be considered in the evaluation of prior experience:
• The number of days worked in a year must be at least 180 days as a full-time

employee
• The percentage of days worked
• Position held
• Type of the organization and accreditation

• Each equivalent year of creditable experience will be equal to 1 YEAR, and each year of
creditable applicable experience will be equal to a 0.5 YEAR. If the total years of experience is
a fraction of a whole, it will be rounded up.

• Example:  3.5 YEARS will be rounded to 4.0 YEARS of experience.
• Rehired employee’s years of experience in the same or higher salary placements will be

treated as equivalent experience.
• The starting salary of a new employee may exceed the salary of a current employee in the

same position based on the creditable years of experience as defined herein.
• Creditable experience may be earned from other schools, districts or any other employer.
• The Principal Executive Director shall recommend the creation of new positions as needed

and will evaluate and recommend placement of the new positions in the appropriate role,
together with any necessary budget adjustments required, to be approved by the School
Board

2323



2424



Role/Salary Placements 

• All positions are classified according to the corresponding role and/or salary placements
based on the required set of skills, education, effort, and responsibility of the job assignment
as indicated in the specific job description.  All positions may be reclassified as necessary by
the Principal Executive Director or designee. Some hard-to staff positions may be
compensated out of the salary schedule as approved by the Principal Executive Director in
writing.

Advancements on Pay Scale 

• An advancement on the Pay Scale is the placement of an employee from a position in a lower
salary placement to a position in a higher salary placement and will be determined on the
same basis and factors articulated herein.

Lateral Transfer 

• A lateral transfer is the movement of an employee from one position to another within the
same salary placement. The employee may continue to progress in the same salary
placement as experience in the position is accumulated.  Prior experience will not be re-
evaluated for purposes of placement or advancement in the new salary placement.

Partial Assignments 

• In cases where a classified employee has been given multiple assignments (e.g. a SPED
coordinator with partial EL duties), the employee will be placed on the salary schedule (or
salary placement) with the higher salary.

Reassignments 

• Employees approved to voluntarily transfer to a position in a lower placement on the salary
scale, if applicable, will be placed in the new salary placement, and the salary will be
calculated as it is in the new placement or schedule

• When an employee is reassigned for any reason to a position in a lower salary placement, the
employee’s salary will be lowered during the next payroll cycle, or when determined by the
Principal Executive Director to avoid disruption so long as it is not earlier than the next
payroll period.

Rehires 

• A former employee who returns to a position similar to the role held prior to separation will
be placed on the salary scale as follows:

• The converted grade and step of individuals who separated employment will be
identified for appropriate entry placement on the salary scale.

• All applicable work experience earned outside of Granite Mountain Charter Schools,
subsequent to separation, may be identified and used for credit as equivalent or
applicable experience in accordance with the creditable years of service as
described herein.

2525



Experience – Nonexempt Employees 

• Each nonexempt employee will be placed on the salary schedule based on their years of
relevant experience.  Although non-exempt employees may be paid a monthly salary (paid on
a semi-monthly basis), All non-exempt salaried employees will be paid for all hours worked
and are eligible for overtime in accordance with applicable law.  Employees should are
required to receive approval from their supervisor before working overtime.

• The evaluation of prior experience will be made by the Principal Executive Director or his/her
designee. The following criteria, among others, may be considered in evaluation of prior
experience:

• The number of days worked in a year must be at least 180 days as a full time
employee

• The percentage of days worked
• Position held
• Type of the organization and accreditation

• Experience including secretarial, clerical, teaching, professional, and substitute experience
may be credited.

• Each year of experience may be 1 YEAR in the schedule.
• The starting salary of a new employee may exceed the salary of a current employee in the

same position based on their years of experience.
• Experience may be earned in other districts, charter schools or other companies.
• The Principal Executive Director or his or her designee may adjust a rehired non-exempt

employee’s placement on the pay scale as appropriate based on the employee’s accumulated
relevant experience following the employee’s separation from the School, which may result
in a higher or lower placement on the scale than the employee would have otherwise been
placed had the employee been continuously employed. Adjustments to an employee’s salary
may be made in any subsequent school year.

Additional Supplement Bonus (“Supplement”): 

The Principal Executive Director may recommend a Supplement for classified staff members as set forth 
in this section.  

• The A Principal Executive Director, in his or her sole discretion, shall determine what duties
shall be supplemented based upon the operational needs of the school.

• A supplement is not automatic, and can be provided at the discretion and approval of the
Principal Executive Director in writing, based on additional work beyond the regular work
responsibilities.

• A supplement will be paid to the employee in accordance with the schedule provided by the
School at the time of supplement award.

• The supplemental award shall not exceed $35,000 or 50% of annual salary, whichever is
higher.

2626



• All supplements awarded are paid for the performance of duties beyond the regular work
day and normal job responsibilities and are not approved solely on the basis of position
classification or previous supplement payment. Additional time spent fulfilling job duties
does not constitute a basis for compensation beyond the classified staff members' regular
salary.

• Classified staff member’s supplements will be set forth in a Supplement Performance Order.
The Supplement Performance Order Request shall be completed and signed by the classified
staff member and the Principal Executive Director prior to performing the supplemental
duties.

• Supplements will be paid in installments or one lump sum if less than $1,001. However, this
option will not be available where it would cause the employee to receive compensation
prior to providing the service.

• Additional Supplements may include things such as Winter Break Coverage and Enrollment
Milestones.

• To qualify for an extended duty supplement, the following criteria must be met as requested
and assigned by the Principal Executive Director:

• 1. The Principal Executive Director must first agree with the classified staff member
on the terms in writing

• 3. The supplemental work must be separate from the normal job responsibilities.
• 4. The work must be completed or in the progress of being completed.

2727



PAYROLL ADVANCE POLICY 

POLICY BRIEF AND PURPOSE 

Our payroll advance policy describes our terms for advancing pay to our employees as an emergency 
short-term loan. 

SCOPE 

This policy applies to all employees, with the exception of the Principal Executive Director and officers of 
Granite Mountain Charter School.  In addition, temporary employees with contracts that are less than 
one year will not be eligible for Payroll Advances. 

POLICY ELEMENTS 

“Payroll advance” refers to employees receiving a portion of their pay before their next normal payday. 
This does not include any money paid to the employee for work-related expenses. 

The School is not obliged to pay employees in advance and may choose to do so if employees have 
qualifying reasons. 

CONDITIONS FOR REQUESTING A PAYROLL ADVANCE 

Employees can ask for a pay advance if they: 

• Have been employed with the school for three consecutive months.
• Have not taken any other company-sponsored loan.
• Do not have any current negative evaluations or disciplinary actions.

These conditions apply to all eligible employees without discrimination against protected characteristics. 

Employees should have a legitimate reason to ask for advance pay, usually an unexpected or 
unavoidable occurrence. Examples of such reasons, although not conclusive, are for: 

• Family or personal emergencies (e.g. being victims of a robbery or fire, having to pay funeral fees)
• Hospital bills not covered by medical insurance
• Car repairs not covered by insurance
• To save a family home

2828



Examples of non-qualifying reasons, include but are not limited to: 

• Taking a planned vacation
• Entertainment expenses
• Gambling
• Fines

PAYROLL ADVANCE TERMS 

Subject to approval, the maximum advance pay may be up to $5,000.  If employees find themselves in 
need of more frequent or larger pay advances than they are allowed, they should discuss the situation 
with their Principal Executive Director. The Principal Executive Director may decide to make exceptions 
on a case-by-case basis. 

We will deduct the amount of the advance pay from an employee’s future paychecks. This may mean: 

• Depending on the amount, deducting the full amount from their next paycheck.
• Repaying the amount in small installments out of a number of future paychecks.

The repayment terms must be in writing and signed by employees and will comply with applicable laws. 

We The school will not charge any administrative fees or interest. 

If an employee resigns or is terminated before they repay their payroll advance, HR, subject to approval 
by the Principal Executive Director, is responsible for reaching a new agreement with the employee. Any 
relevant legal requirements (whether federal, state or local) must be followed. 

PAYROLL ADVANCE AGREEMENTS 

Employees who want to request a payroll advance should request a Payroll Advance form from HR. They 
must: 

• Indicate their reasons for filing the form.
• State the amount of money they want to receive in advance.
• Sign to accept this policy’s terms.

This procedure must be followed: 

1. Employees should submit the form to their Principal Executive Director or their Supervisor, if the
Principal Executive Director is unavailable.

2. The Principal Executive Director should first review the form. If they he/she approves, they the Executive
Director must sign the form and submit it to HR.

3. HR and the CBO or designee must also review the form and decide whether to grant the employee’s
request in consultation with the Principal Executive Director. If they approve, HR must create an
agreement form for the pay advance and repayment terms taking any applicable taxes into account. This
agreement must be signed by HR, the CBO or designee and the employee and include relevant dates.

2929



4. HR must forward the signed agreement to the accounting department. The accounting department will
generally give employees their advance pay through check or bank transfer within a week, if possible,
after receiving the form.

If the request is denied, the Principal Executive Director must inform the employee.

The advance must be paid back within one year of the initial payment to the employee, subject to
applicable law.  If there is a problem with meeting the requirement then the employee must sign an
agreement that moves them toward quickly meeting that requirement.

NOTICE TO BOARD

The Board must be informed by the Principal Executive Director if an employee resigns prior to repaying
their payroll advance.

3030



&KDUWHU6$)(�6HUYLFHV
ͲO

RNGO
GPVCVKQP

3131



+XP
DQ�5HVRXUFHV�$XGLW

Ɣ
6JG�*

TCPKVG�/
QWPVCKP�+

WO
CP�4GUQWTEGU�FGRCTVO

GPV�Y
KNN�O

GGV�TGIWNCTN[�Y
KVJ�

&JCTVGT5$)(�VQ�IQ�VJTQWIJ�C�+
WO

CP�4GUQWTEGU�CWFKV�VQ�GPUWTG�Y
G�JCXG�C�

UVTQPI��EQO
RNKCPV�+

4�FGRCTVO
GPV��&JCTVGT5$)(�JCU�RTQXKFGF�C����RCIG�NQPI�

$WFKV�EJGEMNKUV�VQ�TGXKGY
��

3232



&UHGHQWLDO�$QDO\VLV�DQG�+5�&HUWLˋFDWLRQ
Ɣ

6JKU�RTQITCO
�Y
CU�ETGCVGF�URGEKȤECNN[�HQT�&CNKHQTPKC�EJCTVGT�UEJQQNU��CNNQY

KPI�RCTVKEKRCPVU�VQ�ICKP�C�
EGTVKȤECVKQP�KP�+

4�NCY
U�CPF�DGUV�RTCEVKEGU�Y

KVJ������JQWT�QPNKPG�EQWTUGU��1
WT�$UUKUVCPV�'

KTGEVQT�QH�
+
WO

CP�4GUQWTEGU�Y
KNN�DG�CVVGPFKPI�VJKU�RTQITCO

�VQ�EQPVKPWG�VQ�GPUWTG�C�UVTQPI�+
4�FGRCTVO

GPV���

0
RQWKO\�&KDUWHU�6FKRRO�/HDGHU�7RRONLW

Ɣ
9
G�Y

KNN�GPUWTG�VJCV�CRRTQRTKCVG�UVCͮ
�FGRCTVO

GPVU�JCXG�CEEGUU�VQ�VJKU�JGNRHWN�VQQNMKV�Y
JKEJ�HGCVWTGU�

TGO
KPFGTU�QH�KO

RQTVCPV�VCUMU�QWT�UEJQQN�UJQWNF�EQO
RNGVG�VJTQWIJQWV�VJG�[GCT��ͲV�KPENWFGU�4KUM�

/
CPCIGO

GPV��+
WO

CP�4GUQWTEGU�CPF�1
RGTCVKQPU�TGNCVGF�VQRKEU��

3333



6DIH6FKRROV�7UDLQLQJ
Ɣ

1
PNKPG�QP�FGO

CPF�EQWTUGU�VQ�EQO
RN[�Y

KVJ�&CNKHQTPKC�VTCKPKPI�TGIWNCVKQPU�HQT�EJCTVGT�UEJQQN�
GO

RNQ[GGU��9
G�Y

KNN�DG�WUKPI�&JCTVGT5$)(ǷU�5CHG5EJQQNU�VTCKPKPIU�HQT�CNN�QH�QWT�GO
RNQ[GGU�QP�VQRKEU�

UWEJ�CU�/
CPFCVGF�4GRQTVGT��%NQQFDQTPG�2CVJQIGPU��CPF�5GZWCN�+

CTCUUO
GPV��CO

QPI�QVJGTU��

:
HELQDUV

Ɣ
&JCTVGT5$)(�Qͮ

GTU�NKXG�CPF�RTG�TGEQTFGF�VTCKPKPIU�QP�VQRKEU�UWEJ�CU�UEJQQN�UCHGV[��JWO
CP�TGUQWTEGU��

Y
QTMGTUǷ�EQO

RGPUCVKQP��CPF�VJG�IGPGTCN�KPUWTCPEG�ENKO
CVG�KP�&CNKHQTPKC��9

G�Y
KNN�JCXG�QWT�$'

�QH�+
4��

&JKGH�QH�5VCͮ
��&JKGH�%WUKPGUU�1

ɍ
EGT�CPF�CP[�QVJGT�CRRNKECDNG�UVCͮ

�O
GO

DGTU�Y
CVEJ�VJGUG�VTCKPKPIU��

3434



5LVN�0
DQDJHP

HQW
Ɣ

9
G�Y

KNN�DG�EQPUWNVKPI�Y
KVJ�&JCTVGT5$)(ǷU�4KUM�/

CPCIGO
GPV�VGCO

�QP�KUUWGU�QH�UCHGV[��JWO
CP�TGUQWTEGU��

CPF�EQPVTCEV�TGXKGY
��

'RFXP
HQW�/LEUDU\

Ɣ
9
G�Y

KNN�DG�O
CMKPI�WUG�QH�&JCTVGT5$)(ǷU�FQEWO

GPV�NKDTCT[�HQT�KVGO
U�NKMG�UCO

RNG�RQNKEKGU��VGO
RNCVGU��LQD�

FGUETKRVKQPU��Y
GDKPCT�3

	
$ǷU��EJGEMNKUVU�CPF�QVJGT�TGUQWTEGU�VQ�DQNUVGT�QWT�VGCO

ǷU�Gͮ
GEVKXGPGUU�

3535



�
�

6FKRRO�(QUROOPHQW�&DSDFLW\�
8SGDWHG��������

�
�
$V�D�UHVXOW�RI�WKH�SDVVDJH�RI�6%�����LW�LV�UHFRPPHQGHG�WKDW�WKH�ERDUG�DSSURYH�D�WHPSRUDU\�
UHGXFWLRQ�LQ�VFKRRO�FDSDFLW\�HQUROOPHQW�WR��������6WXGHQWV�DOUHDG\�RIIHUHG�VSDFH�LQ�WKH�VFKRRO�
ZLOO�QRW�ORVH�WKHLU�VSDFH��EXW�VSRWV�WKDW�HPHUJH�IURP�VWXGHQW�ZLWKGUDZDOV�ZLOO�QRW�EH�ILOOHG�IURP�
WKH�ZDLW�OLVW�XQWLO�WKH�HQUROOPHQW�LV�GRZQ�WR�D�QXPEHU�RI������� �
�
�

3636



Instructional Funds Policy 
Granite Mountain Charter School is committed to giving students the same opportunities that are 
offered at non-charter district schools. District schools often provide opportunities for music, art, 
sports, field trips, and other ways to extend the learning experience. 

The purpose of the Granite Mountain Charter School Governing Board approving this 
Granite Mountain Charter School Curriculum and Enrichment Funds Policy is to 
accomplish the following: 

1. Establish Assurances & Procedural Safeguards
2. Determine Specific Funding Amount
3. Clarify What Funds Can Be Used For
4. Clarify When Funds Can Be Used
5. Identify Non-Consumable Category Groups
6. Authorize Establishment of Lending Libraries

1. Establish Assurances & Procedural Safeguards: The school will use a system with multiple
checks and internal controls to ensure all instructional funds are utilized appropriately and
lawfully.
Ordering Process:

i. Parent requests curriculum, service/class, and/or product through the Granite
Mountain Charter School’s ordering system. Enrichment Centre (in-house, online
ordering system).

ii. The teacher consistent with Granite Mountain Charter School ’s policies and
procedures, reviews and determines whether or not the requested item has
appropriate educational value and prior to approval, will ensure the service or
product is nonsectarian in nature in accordance with Ed. Code 47605(de)(1),
which states, “a charter school shall be nonsectarian in its programs, and all other
operations”.

iii. Enrichment staff members also ensures that the requested item is evaluated for
appropriate educational value and prior to approval, ensures that the service or
product is nonsectarian in nature in accordance with Ed. Code 47605(de)(1),
which states, “a charter school shall be nonsectarian in its programs, and all other
operations”.

2. Determine Specific Funding Amount: The funding amount for the 2019-2020 2020-2021
school year will be up to $3,000 for TK-8 students and $3,200 for high school students.
$2,600 for TK-8th students and $2,800 for 9-12th students. The families’ chosen curriculum is
deducted from the allocated funding amount. Currently, curriculum costs range from $150 to
$1,000 per student. This amount may be adjusted at any time at Board discretion or based on
budget need. Students who engage in a multi-year learning plan can submit a request to use
multi-year funding which will be subject to review. These exceptions will be made by the
Secondary Approval Committee on a case by case basis in the sole discretion of the school.
In some years, due to budget constraints or other operational needs, multi-year learning plans
will not be allowed.  3737



Clarify What Funds Can Be Used For: Instructional Funds will first be used toward the 
student’s core subjects, technology items, then other enrichment products and services, 
and other appropriate items to extend the learning experience like fieldtrips, educational 
travel and related educational conferences/workshops. Limit on educational travel: A 
student may only use instructional funds to sign up for one educational travel experience 
per school year. Up to $965 of students Instructional Funds can be applied to their 
educational travel experience. Any deposits required to hold a student’s spot on an 
educational travel tour cannot be paid using instructional funds. Educational content is all 
that can be covered by instructional funds. Travel costs such as transportation, food and 
lodging cannot be paid using instructional funds. Parents or guardians planning to travel 
with their student must pay 100% of their travel and tour costs. Up to $350 a year may be 
requested to be used on parent trainings or workshops that directly support students 
learning. All use of funds must be approved by the student’s credentialed teacher 
consistent with Granite Mountain Charter School ’s policies and procedures. 

3. Clarify When Funds Can Be Used: Instructional Funds are only available in the
months that school is in session. Requests for the month of July may be processed as
long as past year’s funding is used in order to enhance and expand innovative learning
opportunities helping to minimize the effects of learning loss typically seen come fall.
may be used when students are in session or when they are not in session. For
example, Students may extend their learning by taking a class on an evening or
Saturday outside of the regular instructional day. Furthermore, since Granite
Mountain Charter School considers the Instructional Funds as encumbered to support
the specific student consistent with policies and procedures, students are able to
utilize these instructional funds during the traditional "summer months" and
throughout their time at Granite Mountain Charter School in order to enhance and
expand innovative learning opportunities helping to minimize the effects of learning
loss typically seen come fall. Consistent with the practices of many non- charter
districts supporting student learning or remediation during times when school is not
in session, is an acceptable use of funds for students. Funds can be transferred
between siblings enrolled at Granite Mountain Charter School and co-used with
administrative approval.

4. Identify Non-Consumable Category Groups: All items in the following categories
are considered non-consumable and must be returned as school property:

i. Technology, Electronics, and Media (CDs/DVDs)
ii. Textbooks and Teacher Manuals
iii. Science Equipment
iv. Musical Equipment
v. Games and Puzzles

5. Authorize Establishment of Mobile Lending Libraries Library: As a general
benefit to ALL Granite Mountain Charter School families, non-consumables other
than technology that are returned will be available for borrowing in our newly
established Mobile Lending Libraries Library to be located within our current offices.

3838



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Policy Confirming Restriction on the Provision of Funds or 
Other Thing of Value to Students, Parents or Guardians 

POLICY STATEMENT 
 

It is the policy of Granite Mountain Charter School that Granite Mountain 
Charter School shall not provide any funds or thing of value to any student or his or her 
parent or guardian that a school district could not legally provide to a similarly situated 
student, or his or her parent or guardian. Granite Mountain Charter School does not and 
shall not provide, for example, “sign up bonuses” to parents or guardians or other 
incentives unrelated to education. 

 
Additionally, a student, parent or guardian shall not use his or her status as a 

student, parent or guardian with Granite Mountain Charter School in order to obtain 
funds or thing of value from Granite Mountain Charter School. For example, this policy 
prohibits an individual from utilizing his or her status as a parent or guardian to obtain a 
vendor contract with Granite Mountain Charter School for compensation. It also 
prohibits an individual from utilizing his or her status as a parent or guardian to refer or 
encourage any students enrolled in Granite Mountain Charter School, or their parents or 
guardians, to select that individual or his or her company or another provider of services, 
in connection with the student’s education at Granite Mountain Charter School, resulting 
in the individual’s receipt of funds or thing of value from Granite Mountain Charter 
School. 

 
PROCEDURES 

 
The prior approval of the Senior Director or his or her designee must be obtained 

for any of the following in order to ensure that it does not conflict with this policy: 
1. Any funds or thing of value provided to a student, parent or guardian which has not 

previously been approved. This applies in any situation in which a student, parent 
or guardian would any funds or thing of value, whether in their capacity as a 
student, parent, guardian, vendor, service provider or other circumstance. 

2. Any proposed incentive to be offered to students or parents. 
In requesting approval, the educational purpose of any such funds, thing of value 

or incentive must be provided to the Senior Director or his or her designee. 
 

Approved by the Granite Mountain Charter School Board of Directors on June 8, 2019. 
 Revised: July 9th, 2020 

 3939



Policy Regarding Inconsistent, Incompatible or Conflicting 
Employment, Activity or Enterprise by School Personnel 

POLICY STATEMENT 

It is the policy of Granite Mountain Charter School that its officers and employees may 
not engage in any outside activity, employment, or enterprise for compensation which is 
inconsistent, incompatible with, or in conflict with, his or her duties as an officer or employee of 
Granite Mountain Charter School. 

An officer’s or employee’s outside activity, employment, or enterprise for compensation 
shall be determined to be inconsistent, incompatible with, or in conflict with, his or her duties as 
an officer of employee of Granite Mountain Charter School if any of the following apply: 

1. It involves the use of Granite Mountain Charter School time, facilities, equipment,
supplies, or the officer’s or employee’s position or influence with Granite Mountain
Charter School, for private gain or advantage.

2. It involves receipt or acceptance by the officer of or employee of any money or other
consideration for the performance of an act that would otherwise be required within the
scope of the officer or employee’s duties with Granite Mountain Charter School.

3. It involves the performance of an act as part of the outside activity that involves services
performed for Granite Mountain Charter School.

4. It affects the officer’s or employee’s work hours, interferes or conflicts with the officer’s
or employee’s job duties, raises any ethical or conflict of interest concerns, or creates
any conditions that impacts the officer’s or employee’s job performance.

5. It involves a contract made by the officer or employee in his or her official capacity in
which he or she has a financial interest.

Officers and employees may not use Granite Mountain Charter School’s name, logo,
supplies, equipment or other property in connection with any outside activities.  Officers 
and employees may not recommend or otherwise favor any vendors operated by or 
employing their family members. 

PROCEDURE 

In the event that an officer or employee believes that an outside activity for 
compensation may be inconsistent, incompatible with, or in conflict with, his or her duties as an 
officer or employee of Granite Mountain Charter School, the officer or employee shall obtain a 
written determination of the Senior Director Executive Director or his or her designee that the 
outside activity is not in violation of this policy before engaging in such activity. 

4040



Approved by the Granite Mountain Charter School Board of Directors on June 8, 2019. 
Revised: July 9th, 2020 

4141



�
�

���

For G
ranite M

ountain C
harter School’s

C
onsideration

42



�
�
�
�

&$0�)$&725,1*�352326$/ �

a
�
-XO\���������
�
0V��%URRN�0DF0LOODQ�
0V��-HVVLFD�5RQTXLOOR�
*UDQLWH�0RXQWDLQ�&KDUWHU�6FKRRO�
�����$OLHQWR�5RDG��/XFHUQH�9DOOH\��&$�������
�
'HDU�0V��%URRN�0DF0LOODQ�	�0V��-HVVLFD�5RQTXLOOR���
�
&KDUWHU $VVHW 0DQDJHPHQW )XQG� /�3� �³3XUFKDVHU´� DSSUHFLDWHV WKLV RSSRUWXQLW\ WR EHJLQ RXU UHODWLRQVKLS ZLWK *UDQLWH 0RXQWDLQ� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
&KDUWHU 6FKRRO �³6HOOHU´�� :H ZRXOG OLNH WR SURSRVH WKH IROORZLQJ WHUPV DQG FRQGLWLRQV IRU WKH IDFWRULQJ WUDQVDFWLRQ XQGHU� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
GLVFXVVLRQ� 3OHDVH QRWH WKDW WKLV OHWWHU LV QRW LQWHQGHG WR FRQVWLWXWH D FRPPLWPHQW WR IDFWRU RQ WKH SDUW RI WKH 3XUFKDVHU� EXW WR� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
VXPPDUL]H IRU GLVFXVVLRQ SXUSRVHV WKH ZRUNLQJ FDSLWDO DFFRPPRGDWLRQ WKDW ZH DUH LQWHUHVWHG LQ FRQVLGHULQJ� 1RWZLWKVWDQGLQJ WKH� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
IRUHJRLQJ� WKH WHUPV XQGHU WKH KHDGLQJ ³&RQILGHQWLDOLW\´ DV VHW IRUWK EHORZ LQ WKLV OHWWHU VKDOO FRQVWLWXWH D ELQGLQJ DQG OHJDOO\� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
HQIRUFHDEOH�DJUHHPHQW�EHWZHHQ�WKH�SDUWLHV��
�
)DFWRULQJ LV D FRPPRQ ILQDQFLQJ WUDQVDFWLRQ XVHG LQ PDQ\ LQGXVWULHV ZKHUH IXWXUH UHYHQXHV� LQ WKLV FDVH� VWDWH�DLG UHFHLYDEOHV� DUH� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
SXUFKDVHG DW D GLVFRXQW WR DGYDQFH FDSLWDO IRU XVH LQ WKH SUHVHQW� ,Q RWKHU ZRUGV� &$0 ZLOO SURYLGH FDSLWDO WR \RXU FKDUWHU VFKRRO QRZ� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
E\�SXUFKDVLQJ�D�SRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�DLG�GXH�WR�\RXU�VFKRRO�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH���
a

�

3XUFKDVHU� &KDUWHU�$VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW�)XQG��/�3��

6HOOHU� *UDQLWH�0RXQWDLQ�&KDUWHU�6FKRRO�

)XQGLQJ�2SWLRQV�
�

2SWLRQ� 6FKRRO� 7RWDO�)XQGLQJ� 7RWDO�&RVW� 3URSRVHGb
$QQXDOL]HG�5DWH�

�� *0&6� �������������� ����������� ������
�� *0&6� �������������� ����������� ������

�

)XQGLQJ�'DWH� -XO\����������

5HSD\PHQW�6FKHGXOH� 3XUVXDQW�WR�5HSD\PHQW�6FKHGXOH�%HORZ�

2IIHU�([SLUDWLRQ� -XO\����������

� �
�
�

a
�
�
� �
�

443



�
�
�
�

�
5HFHLYDEOHV�6FKHGXOH�

a
2SWLRQ���
�

$FFRXQW�$XWKRULW\��b
3D\RU� $FFRXQW�5HFHLYDEOH� $PRXQW�3XUFKDVHG� $GPLQ�)HH� 'LVFRXQW��� 'LVFRXQW� $PRXQW�)XQGHG�

6DQ�%HUQDUGLQR�&RXQW\b
6XSHULQWHQGHQW�RIb

6FKRROV�

)<�������$GYDQFH�$SSRUWLRQPHQWb
2FW�307���/&))�6WDWH�$LG��&'6�b

�����������������
�������������� �� ������ ����������� ���������������

6DQ�%HUQDUGLQR�&RXQW\b
6XSHULQWHQGHQW�RIb

6FKRROV�

)<�������$GYDQFH�$SSRUWLRQPHQWb
1RY�307���/&))�6WDWH�$LG��&'6�b

�����������������
�������������� �� ������ ����������� ���������������

7RWDO� � �������������� �� � ����������� ���������������

a
�
2SWLRQ���
�

$FFRXQW�$XWKRULW\��b
3D\RU� $FFRXQW�5HFHLYDEOH� $PRXQW�3XUFKDVHG� $GPLQ�)HH� 'LVFRXQW��� 'LVFRXQW� $PRXQW�)XQGHG�

6DQ�%HUQDUGLQR�&RXQW\b
6XSHULQWHQGHQW�RIb

6FKRROV�

)<�������$GYDQFH�$SSRUWLRQPHQWb
2FW�307���/&))�6WDWH�$LG��&'6�b

�����������������
�������������� �� ������ ����������� ���������������

6DQ�%HUQDUGLQR�&RXQW\b
6XSHULQWHQGHQW�RIb

6FKRROV�

)<�������$GYDQFH�$SSRUWLRQPHQWb
1RY�307���/&))�6WDWH�$LG��&'6�b

�����������������
�������������� �� ������ ����������� ���������������

7RWDO� � �������������� �� � ����������� ���������������

a
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

444



�
�
�
�

5HSD\PHQW�6FKHGXOH�

a
2SWLRQ���
�

$FFRXQW�5HFHLYDEOHb 5HSD\PHQW�'DWHb

)<�������$GYDQFH�$SSRUWLRQPHQW�2FW�307���/&))�6WDWH�$LG��&'6�b
����������������� &LUFD�HDUO\�1RYHPEHU�����b

)<�������$GYDQFH�$SSRUWLRQPHQW�1RY�307���/&))�6WDWH�$LG��&'6�b
����������������� &LUFD�HDUO\�'HFHPEHU�����b

a
�
2SWLRQ���
�

$FFRXQW�5HFHLYDEOHb 5HSD\PHQW�'DWHb

)<�������$GYDQFH�$SSRUWLRQPHQW�2FW�307���/&))�6WDWH�$LG��&'6�b
����������������� &LUFD�HDUO\�1RYHPEHU�����b

)<�������$GYDQFH�$SSRUWLRQPHQW�1RY�307���/&))�6WDWH�$LG��&'6�b
����������������� &LUFD�HDUO\�'HFHPEHU�����b

�
�
'LVEXUVHPHQW�WLPLQJ�IRU�IHGHUDO��VWDWH��FRXQW\��DQG�ORFDO�VWDWH�DLG�FDQ�YDU\��$FFRXQW�UHFHLYDEOHV�VROG�WR�&$0�DUH�GXH�ZKHQ�
GLVEXUVHG��a
a
a
�
7KDQN�\RX�IRU�FKRRVLQJ�WR�IXQG�ZLWK�&KDUWHU�$VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW��
�

�
�
�
7KLV SURSRVDO OHWWHU LV SURYLGHG VROHO\ IRU WKH SXUSRVH GHVFULEHG KHUHLQ DQG PD\ QRW EH GLVFORVHG WR RU UHOLHG XSRQ E\ DQ\ RWKHU SDUW\ ZLWKRXW WKH� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
3XUFKDVHU
V SULRU ZULWWHQ FRQVHQW� 7KLV SURSRVDO LV LQWHQGHG WR IRUP WKH EDVLV IRU D GLVFXVVLRQ RI D ZRUNLQJ FDSLWDO DFFRPPRGDWLRQ� DQG IXUWKHU� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
QHJRWLDWLRQV DGGLQJ WR RU PRGLI\LQJ WKH JHQHUDO VFRSH RI WKH PDMRU WHUPV VKDOO QRW EH SUHFOXGHG E\ WKH LVVXDQFH RI WKLV 3URSRVDO /HWWHU� 7KLV� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
SURSRVDO�LV�FRQILGHQWLDO�DQG�SURSULHWDU\�IRU�WKH�VROH�SXUSRVH�RI�GLVFXVVLRQV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�SDUWLHV�KHUHXQGHU���
�

3XUFKDVHU UHVHUYHV WKH ULJKW WR LVVXH SUHVV UHOHDVHV� DGYHUWLVHPHQWV� DQG RWKHU SURPRWLRQDO PDWHULDOV GHVFULELQJ DQ\ VXFFHVVIXO RXWFRPH RI� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�RQ�\RXU�EHKDOI��7KH�6HOOHU�DJUHHV�WKDW�3XUFKDVHU�VKDOO�KDYH�WKH�ULJKW�WR�LGHQWLI\�WKH�%RUURZHU�E\�QDPH�LQ�WKRVH�PDWHULDOV���
�

:KHWKHU RU QRW WKH WUDQVDFWLRQ FRQWHPSODWHG KHUHLQ LV FRQVXPPDWHG� E\ \RXU DFFHSWDQFH KHUHRI� �D� \RX DJUHH WR EHDU DOO UHDVRQDEOH� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
RXW�RI�SRFNHW H[SHQVHV RI 3XUFKDVHU DQG DOO IHHV DQG GLVEXUVHPHQWV RI 3XUFKDVHU
V FRXQVHO �LQFOXGLQJ WKH DOORFDWHG FRVWV RI LQVLGH FRXQVHO�� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
UHODWLQJ WR WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ RI WKLV OHWWHU DQG RI WKH SURSRVHG ILQDQFLQJ GRFXPHQWDWLRQ DQG WR WKH WUDQVDFWLRQ FRQWHPSODWHG KHUHE\ DQG WKHUHE\� LI� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
DSSOLFDEOH� DQG �E� \RX DJUHH WR LQGHPQLI\ 3XUFKDVHU� LWV DIILOLDWHV� DQG WKHLU UHVSHFWLYH GLUHFWRUV� RIILFHUV DQG HPSOR\HHV DQG WR GHIHQG DQG KROG� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
3XUFKDVHU� LWV DIILOLDWHV DQG VXFK RWKHU SHUVRQV KDUPOHVV IURP DQG DJDLQVW DOO ORVVHV� FODLPV� GDPDJHV� OLDELOLWLHV DQG H[SHQVHV �LQFOXGLQJ H[SHQVHV� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
RI OLWLJDWLRQ RU SUHSDUDWLRQ WKHUHRI� ZKLFK 3XUFKDVHU RU DQ\ VXFK DIILOLDWHV RU VXFK RWKHU SHUVRQV LQ FRQQHFWLRQ ZLWK RU DULVLQJ RXW RI WKH PDWWHUV� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
UHIHUUHG�WR�KHUHLQ��H[FHSW�IRU�GDPDJHV�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�WKH�JURVV�QHJOLJHQFH�RU�ZLOOIXO�PLVFRQGXFW�RI�WKH�/HQGHU��

�

445



����
&
$
0
�)$

&
7
2
5
,1
*
�35

2
32

6$
/
�68

33/
(
0
(
1
7
$
/
�6/

,'
(�

�

$
QQXDOL]HG�5

DWHV�	
�$
VVXP

SWLRQV�
a

�
2
SWLRQ���

�

$
FFR

XQW�$
XWKR

ULW\��b
3
D\R

U�
$
FFR

XQW�5
HFHLYDE

OH�
$
P
R
XQWb

3
XUFKDVHG�

$
G
P
LQ�)HH�

'
LVFR

XQW��
�

'
LVFR

XQW�����
$
P
R
XQWb

)XQG
HG�

(
VW��'

XHb
'
DWH�

)XQG
LQJb

'
DWH�

)DFWR
ULQJb

'
D\V�����

$
QQXDOL]HGb

5
DWH� �����[b
����������

6
DQ�%

HUQDUGLQRb
&
RXQW\b

6
XSHULQWHQGHQW�RIb

6
FKRROV�

)<
�������$

GYDQFHb
$
SSRUWLRQP

HQW�2
FW�3

0
7��b

/&
))�6

WDWH�$
LG��&

'
6
�b

�����������������
��������������

��
�����

�
�����������

���������������
��������

��������
����

�����
�

6
DQ�%

HUQDUGLQRb
&
RXQW\b

6
XSHULQWHQGHQW�RIb

6
FKRROV�

)<
�������$

GYDQFHb
$
SSRUWLRQP

HQW�1
RY�3

0
7��b

/&
))�6

WDWH�$
LG��&

'
6
�b

�����������������
��������������

��
�����

�
�����������

���������������
��������

��������
����

�����
�

7
R
WDO�

�
��������������

��
�

�����������
���������������

�
�

�
�����

�
���

QQXDOL]HG�5DWH�
$

 
�

)
DFWRULQJ�'

D\V
'
LVFRXQW���

��
����


����
����

�

�

446



����
�2
SWLRQ���

�

$
FFR

XQW�$
XWKR

ULW\��b
3
D\R

U�
$
FFR

XQW�5
HFHLYDE

OH�
$
P
R
XQWb

3
XUFKDVHG�

$
G
P
LQ�)HH�

'
LVFR

XQW��
�

'
LVFR

XQW�����
$
P
R
XQWb

)XQG
HG�

(
VW��'

XHb
'
DWH�

)XQG
LQJb

'
DWH�

)DFWR
ULQJb

'
D\V�����

$
QQXDOL]HGb

5
DWH� �����[b
����������

6
DQ�%

HUQDUGLQRb
&
RXQW\b

6
XSHULQWHQGHQW�RIb

6
FKRROV�

)<
�������$

GYDQFHb
$
SSRUWLRQP

HQW�2
FW�3

0
7��b

/&
))�6

WDWH�$
LG��&

'
6
�b

�����������������
��������������

��
�����

�
�����������

���������������
��������

��������
����

�����
�

6
DQ�%

HUQDUGLQRb
&
RXQW\b

6
XSHULQWHQGHQW�RIb

6
FKRROV�

)<
�������$

GYDQFHb
$
SSRUWLRQP

HQW�1
RY�3

0
7��b

/&
))�6

WDWH�$
LG��&

'
6
�b

�����������������
��������������

��
�����

�
�����������

���������������
��������

��������
����

�����
�

7
R
WDO�

�
��������������

��
�

�����������
���������������

�
�

�
�����

�
���

QQXDOL]HG�5DWH�
$

 
�

)
DFWRULQJ�'

D\V
'
LVFRXQW���

��
����


�

�

447



�

48



�
�

���

Q
&

A

49



C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved.

C
harter S

chool 
C

apital + 
G

ranite 
M

ountain
C

harter S
chool

July 8, 2020

50



2C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved. 

A
G

EN
D

A
�

W
ho w

e are
�

W
hat w

e do
o

W
orking C

apital
o

Facilities Financing
o

E
nrollm

ent M
arketing

o
C

harter S
chool E

nergy
o

B
usiness S

ervices
�

C
lient feedback

51



3C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved. 

�

W
H

O
 W

E 
A

R
E

�
W

e are a specialty finance com
pany focused

on financial, business and facilities support
for charter schools

�
In the past 13 years, w

e have:
o

S
erved m

ore than 1,250,000
students

and their fam
ilies

o
S

upported m
ore than 700

charter schools
o

Invested $2B
 in helping charter schools

better serve their com
m

unities
�

Facilities financing arm
 supports charter

leaders w
ith long-term

 leases
o

41
schools across the country

o
Tenant im

provem
ents and energy

services
�

M
ore than 45

em
ployees headquartered in

P
ortland, O

R
�

S
tellar track record w

ith schools and
investors

C
O

M
PA

N
Y O

VER
VIEW

52



C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved.

W
H

AT W
E D

O

53



5C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved. 

W
orking capital can be accessed to:

�
B

uild an athletic program
�

P
ay for buses or other transportation

�
Im

plem
ent safety and security system

s
�

P
rovide new

 technology in the classroom
�

Train and hire staff
�

P
urchase new

 com
puters

�
O

pen a new
 school

�
To address budget shortfalls and delays 

�
R

AN
 Takeout

�
Financial S

afety N
et for schools in these 

uncertain tim
es

W
O

R
K

IN
G

 
C

A
PITA

L
O

ur receivable sales product is a reliable and 
flexible process that provides access to capital for 
operations, facilities, program

m
atic expenses, or 

other obligations.

TR daWe, Z
e¶Ye inYeVWed m

RUe Whan $1.6 billiRn 
in m

ore than 700 schools and supporting the 
education of m

ore than 800,000 students.

54



6C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved. 

FA
C

ILITIES
W

hy long-term
 lease financing?

�
You can finance 100%

 of project costs
�

You can retain control of your facility
�

You can plan on long-term
 affordability

�
You can enhance your existing building or
finance new

 construction
�

Your lease can be custom
ized to your

school¶s m
odel ±

w
hether blended learning,

traditional, etc.
�

Tenant im
provem

ents can be financed in
your lease

�
C

an be used as take-out financing for an
existing bond or potential bridge to bond
financing

O
ur facilities financing product is based on 

acquiring charter school real estate supporting 
developm

ent and/or m
aking facility upgrades. 

W
e¶Ye inYested $350 m

illion to sXpport a portfolio 
of 41 charter school facilities in 10 states.

Charter schools could save up to 20% on 
monthly lease costs by financing through 

Charter School Capital

55



7C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved. 

EN
R

O
LLM

EN
T 

M
A

R
K

ETIN
G

�
O

ur team
 is providing enrollm

ent m
arketing

consulting and advertising services to boost
enrollm

ent through:
o

W
ebsite im

provem
ents

o
P

aid search
o

S
ocial m

edia advertising
o

D
irect m

ail
o

E
m

ail, etc. 
o

S
E

O
, S

E
M

, local search

TH
E

D
ETA

ILS

PAY-FO
R

-P
E

R
FO

R
M

AN
C

E
 O

P
TIO

N
: 

S
chools pay for new

ly-enrolled students that C
harter 

S
chool C

apital sources and retains during 
enrollm

ent m
arketing efforts.

56



8C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved. 

IM
P

R
O

VE
 E

D
U

C
ATIO

N
AL E

NVIR
O

N
M

E
N

T 
�

C
ustom

 lighting designs
�

S
m

art lighting and controls 
�

S
olar/safety w

indow
 film

R
E

D
U

C
E

 C
O

S
TS

 AN
D

 E
NVIR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L IM
PAC

T
�

R
educed energy costs

�
R

eduction in m
aintenance expenses

�
Leasing and financing options available

�
C

harter S
chool C

apital finances
the

projectcost,w
ith 

repa\m
ent coYered b\ the school¶s m

onthl\ energ\ 
savings.

P
artnering w

ith B
ioS

tarR
enew

ables, w
e 

retrofit aging school energy system
s w

ith 
new

,efficientsystem
s; reducing

utility expenses 
through upgraded electrical com

ponents (e.g. 
LE

D
 lights, H

VAC
 system

s, and electrical 
controls).

TH
E D

ETA
ILS

C
H

A
R

TER
 

SC
H

O
O

L 
EN

ER
G

Y

If any of your schools have fluorescent 
fixtures w

ith m
ore than tw

o bulbs, they probably 
need an energy upgrade.

57



9C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved. 

B
U

SIN
ESS 

SER
VIC

ES: 
EXC

LU
SIVELY FO

R
 

O
U

R
 C

LIEN
TS

TH
E D

ETA
ILS

�
R

ecognized nationally for interim
 executive 

leadership and operational support
�

Financial services include:
±

B
udget analysis

±
C

ash flow
 planning

±
AP

/vendor m
anagem

ent
�

C
apacity building

�
G

overnance training
�

Authorizer support and relationship building
�

O
perational system

s and internal controls
�

S
ystem

s and operational review
s

These are services included in ongoing w
orking 

capital and facilities client relationships. 

58



10C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved. 

TR
U

STED
 B

Y C
H

A
R

TER
 SC

H
O

O
L LEA

D
ER

S

³C
harter School C

apital has 
unbelievable integrity. Their 
com

m
itm

ent to the industry 
of charter schools is 

XnsXrpassed.´

FR
A

N
K

 S
TU

C
K

I, PA
LA

D
IN

 A
C

A
D

E
M

Y

³C
harter School C

apital has 
allow

ed us to w
ork w

ith a 
product that is flexible in term

s 
of the am

ount and the tim
ing so 

Z
e can focXs on oXr stXdents.´ 

R
IC

A
R

D
O

 M
IR

A
LE

S
, A

C
A

D
E

M
IA AVA

N
C

E

³The\¶Ye com
e throXgh for Xs 

w
hen w

e needed it the m
ost 

and have done things that other 
financial institutions have not 

been able to do.´ 

PA
U

L O
K

A
ITE

YE
, N

E
W

 D
E

S
IG

N
S

 
C

H
A

R
TE

R
 S

C
H

O
O

LS

³W
e¶Ye serYed another 2000 

students in the last tw
o years 

because of the availability of 
cash flow

 financing w
ith 

C
harter School C

apital.´

S
K

IP
 H

A
N

S
E

N
, LE

A
R

N
4LIFE

³W
e coXldn¶t haYe eYen looked 

at a building like this w
ithout 

them
. They w

ere responsive, 
com

m
unicative, and very m

uch 
aboXt the kids.´ 

FR
E

D
D

Y M
E

N
D

O
ZA

, A
R

IZO
N

A C
O

LLE
G

E
 

P
R

E
P

 A
C

A
D

E
M

Y

³It¶s a big relief to knoZ
 that, 

w
ith C

harter S
chool C

apital, 
our organization can stand 
alone. YoX don¶t get that 

feeling Z
ith a bank.´

D
R

. K
R

IS
 S

IP
P

E
L, S

A
N

 TA
N

 LE
A

R
N

IN
G

 
C

E
N

TE
R

59



C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved.

C
S

C
P

ricing 
P

roposal

60



12C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved. 

C
SC

 PR
IC

IN
G

 PR
O

PO
SA

L: SA
M

PLE N
U

M
B

ER
S

School
Total 

Funding
$TD

 C
ost

D
onation 

To School

Total Net 
C

ost to 
School

Proposed 
Effective 

Rate

G
ranite 

M
ountain 

C
harter 

S
chool

$5,000,000
$133,333

$-66,667
$66,667

7.99%
 base, 

w
ith 

50%
donation 

rem
ainder of 
year

G
ranite 

M
ountain 

C
harter 

S
chool

$4,000,000
$106,667

$-53,333
$53,333

7.99%
base,

w
ith 

50%
donation 

rem
ainder of 
year

G
ranite 

M
ountain 

C
harter 

S
chool

$6,000,000
$200,000

$-100,000
$100,000

7.99%
 

base,w
ith 

50%
donation 

rem
ainder of 
year

O
ctober, N

ovem
ber LC

FF

O
ctober, N

ovem
ber &

 
D

ecem
ber LC

FF

P
roposed estim

ate com
p.

61



62



C
opyright ©

 2018 C
harter School C

apital, Inc. All R
ights R

eserved.

Thank you!

63



FIXED TERM EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT PAGE 1 OF 6 

FIXED TERM EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

GRANITE MOUNTAIN CHARTER SCHOOL & 
BROOK MACMILLAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the above 

named employee (“Employee”) and the Governing Board (“Board”) of Granite Mountain Charter 

School The Board desires to hire employees who will assist Granite Mountain Charter School in 

achieving the goals and meeting the requirements of the school. The parties recognize that Granite 

Mountain Charter School is not governed by the provisions of the California Education Code, 

except as expressly set forth in the Charter Schools Act of 1992. The Board desires to engage the 

services of the Employee for purposes of assisting Granite Mountain Charter School in 

implementing its purposes, policies, and procedures. 

WHEREAS, Granite Mountain Charter School and Employee wish to enter into an 

employment relationship under the conditions set forth herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

A. STATUTORY PROVISIONS RELATING TO CHARTER SCHOOL EMPLOYMENT

1. The charter schools has been established and operate pursuant to the Charter

Schools Act of 1992, Education Code section 47600, et seq. Granite Mountain

Charter School has been duly approved by the District, according to the laws of the

State of California.

2. Pursuant to Education Code section 47604, Granite Mountain Charter School has

elected to be formed and to operate as a non-profit public benefit corporation

pursuant to the Non-profit Public Benefit Corporation Law of California (Part 2,

commencing with section 5110 et seq. of the Corporations Code). As such, Granite

Mountain Charter School is considered a separate legal entity from the District,

which granted the charter. The District shall not be liable for any debts and

obligations of Granite Mountain Charter School, and the employee signing below

expressly recognizes that he/she is being employed by Granite Mountain Charter

School and not the District.

3. Pursuant to Education Code section 47610, Granite Mountain Charter School must

comply with all of the provisions set forth in their charters, but is otherwise exempt

from the laws governing school districts except as specified in Education Code

section 47610.

4. Granite Mountain Charter School shall be deemed the exclusive public school

employer of the employees at Granite Mountain Charter School for purposes of

Government Code section 3540.1.

B. EMPLOYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Duties

Employee will perform such duties as Granite Mountain Charter School may

reasonably assign and Employee will abide by all School policies and procedures

as adopted and amended from time to time.

64



FIXED TERM EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT PAGE 2 OF 6 

�� Term and Work Schedule
Subject to Section C, “Termination of Agreement” herein, Granite Mountain Charter�
School hereby employs Employee for the term of the charter, commencing on or after July�
1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. Workdays for the Employee shall be consistent with�
the applicable calendar of workdays for this position. Executive Directors are�
expected to work 230 days a year.
Granite Mountain Charter School shall have the right to assign or reassign the�
Employee to positions, duties, or additional duties and to make changes in�
responsibilities, work, or transfers, at any time during the contract term. Specific�
programs will have specific needs. Any question should be directed to the�
immediate supervisor.

Employee will not render services in person or by electronic means, paid or�
otherwise, for any other person or entity during contracted work hours with Granite�
Mountain Charter School.

�� Compensation
Employee will receive a salary schedule indicating yearly salary no later than June�
15th of each school year to be paid semi-monthly (twice a month) from which the�
Board shall withhold all statutory and other authorized deductions. (Additional�
column increases earned during the year will be documented on a supplementary�
salary schedule approved by the Board of Directors of Granite Mountain Charter�
School at which the employee is affiliated for any given school year.)  Granite�
Mountain Charter School shall have the right to assign up to two (2) flex students�
(unpaid) at any time.  The board may adjust compensation by up to 15% in the form�
of a salary increase or reduction based on actual enrollment; any salary increase is�
contingent on enrollment and positive performance. The salary schedule is based�
on what the board will deem to be reasonable targets. Salary changes will only be�
permitted at the end of the 1st three fiscal quarters – namely September 30th,�
December 31st, and March 30th. Base salary for 2020-2021 is $150,000�
�$GPLQ��<HDU� �� with a�roster of three (3) students.

�� Employee Benefits
Employee shall be entitled to participate in designated employee benefit programs�
and plans established by Granite Mountain Charter School (subject to program and�
eligibility requirements) for the benefit of its employees, which from time to time�
may be amended and modified by Granite Mountain Charter School in its sole�
discretion.

�� Performance Evaluation

Employee shall receive periodic performance reviews conducted by his/her�
supervisor in accordance with the Granite Mountain Charter School evaluation�
policy.

Failure to evaluate Employee shall not prevent Granite Mountain Charter School�
from disciplining or dismissing Employee in accordance with this Agreement.

65



FIXED TERM EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT PAGE 3 OF 6 

6. Employee Rights

Employment rights and benefits for employment at Granite Mountain Charter

School shall only be as specified in this Employment Agreement, the Charter

Schools Act and Granite Mountain Charter School’s Personnel Handbook, which

from time to time may be amended and modified. Employment rights and benefits

may be affected by other applicable agreements or directives or advisories from the

California Department of Education or State Board of Education. During the term

of this Agreement, Employee shall not acquire or accrue tenure, or any employment

rights with Granite Mountain Charter School.

7. Licensure

Employee understands that employment is contingent upon verification and

maintenance of any applicable licensure and/or credentials.

8. Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting

California Penal Code section 11166 requires any child care custodian who has

knowledge of, or observes, a child in his or her professional capacity or within the

scope of his or her employment whom he or she knows or reasonably suspects has

been the victim of child abuse to report the known or suspected instance of child

abuse to a child protective agency immediately, or as soon as practically possible,

by telephone and to prepare and send a written report thereof within thirty-six (36)

hours of receiving the information concerning the incident.

By executing this Agreement, the Employee acknowledges he or she is a child care

custodian and is certifying that he or she has knowledge of California Penal Code

section 11166 and will comply with its provisions.

9. Fingerprinting/TB Clearance

Fingerprint clearance for Employee will be acquired through submitting the

Employee’s fingerprints to the California Department of Justice. Employee will be

required to assume the cost of all fees related to the fingerprinting process.

Employee will be required to submit evidence from a licensed physician that he/she

was found to be free from active tuberculosis. Both clearances need to be in place

prior to the first day of service.

10. Conflicts of Interest

Employee understands that, while employed by Granite Mountain Charter School,

he or she will have access to confidential and proprietary information. Employee

therefore shall not maintain employment or contracts for employment, or engage in

any consultant or independent contractor relationship, with any other agency or

school that will in any way conflict with his/her employment with Granite

Mountain Charter School.

11. Outside Professional Activities

The outside professional activities including consulting, speaking, and writing shall

66



FIXED TERM EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT PAGE 4 OF 6 

not occur during regular work hours. Granite Mountain Charter School shall in no 

way be responsible for any expenses attendant to the performance of such outside 

activities. 

12. School Intellectual Property and Non-Competition

Employee may during the course of [his/her] duties be advised of certain

confidential business matters and affairs of Employer regarding its business

practices, students, suppliers and employees. Employee’s duties may also place

Employee in a position of trust and confidence with respect to certain trade secrets

and other proprietary information relating to the business of Employer and not

generally known to the public or competitors. Such proprietary information may

include student information, competitive strategies, marketing plans, special

designs or systems, and accounting information. Employee shall not, either during

[his/her] employment with Employer, or any time in the future, directly or

indirectly:

a. disclose or furnish, directly or indirectly, to any other person, firm, agency,

corporation, client, business, or enterprise, any confidential information acquired

during [his/her] employment;

b. individually or in conjunction with any other person, firm, agency,

company, client, business, or corporation, employ or cause to be employed any

confidential information in any manner whatsoever, except in furtherance of the

business of Employer;

c. without the written consent of Employer, publish, deliver, or commit to

being published or delivered, any copies, abstracts, or summaries of any files,

records, documents, drawings, specifications, lists, equipment and similar items

relating to the business of Employer, except to the extent required in the ordinary

course of Employee’s duties;

Upon termination of employment, Employee is required to immediately return to 

Employer all property of Employer in as good condition as when received (normal 

wear and tear excepted) including, but not limited to, all files, records, documents, 

curriculum, equipment and supplies, promotional materials, and similar items 

relating to the business of Employer. 

C. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement may be terminated by any of the following:

1. Early Termination with/without Cause: The School Administration or Board 
may unilaterally, and with or without cause or advance notice, terminate this 
Agreement. In consideration of the right to terminate this Agreement without cause, 
the School shall pay to Employee his/her salary for fifteen (15) calendar days after 
termination occurs.

2. Revocation/Nonrenewal of Charter: In the event that Granite Mountain Charter 
School is either revoked or non-renewed, this Agreement shall terminate 
immediately upon the effective date of the revocation/nonrenewal of the charter,

67



FIXED TERM EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT PAGE 5 OF 6 

and without the need for the process outlined in Section b above. 

3. Death or Incapacitation of Employee: The death of Employee shall terminate this

Agreement and all rights provided under this Agreement. In the event that

Employee becomes incapacitated to the extent that, in the judgment of the Board,

Employee may no longer perform the essential functions of his/her job with or

without reasonable accommodation, as set forth in the job specifications, the Board

may terminate this Agreement.

D. NON-RENEWAL/EXPIRATION OF TERM. The Board may elect not to offer future

employment agreements to Employee at its sole discretion, without cause, and this

Agreement will lapse by its own terms.

E. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Waiver of Breach

The waiver by either party, or the failure of either party to claim a breach of any

provision of this Agreement, will not operate or be construed as a waiver of any

subsequent breach.

2. Assignment

The rights and obligations of the respective parties under the Agreement will inure

to the benefit of and will be binding upon the heirs, legal representatives, successors

and assigns of the parties hereto; provided, however, that this Agreement will not

be assignable by either party without prior written consent of the other party.

3. Governing Law

This Agreement will be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with

the laws of the State of California.

4. Partial Invalidity

If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid or unenforceable by any

court, the remaining provisions herein will remain in effect unless such partial

invalidity or unenforceability would defeat an essential business purpose of the

Agreement.

F. ACCEPTANCE OF EMPLOYMENT

By signing below, the Employee declares as follows:

1. I have read this Agreement and accept employment with Granite Mountain Charter

School on the terms specified herein.

2. All information I have provided to Granite Mountain Charter School related to my

employment is true and accurate.

68



FIXED TERM EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT PAGE 6 OF 6 

3. This is the entire agreement between Granite Mountain Charter School and me

regarding the terms and conditions of my employment. This is a final and complete

agreement and there are no other agreements, oral or written, express or implied,

concerning the subject matter of this Agreement.

Employee Signature: Date: 

Address:   

Telephone: Social Security Number: 

Granite Mountain Charter School Approval: 

Date:   

Board President, Granite Mountain Charter School 

69




